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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL, (if known) PHYSICAL. APPEARANCE

In 1865 at Oswego, a small town on the Willamette River six miles south of 
Portland, H.C. Leonard, H.D, Green, and William S. Ladd formulated plans for 
the construction of the first blast furnace and iron foundry in the Pacific 
Northwest. A Connecticut builder,G.D. Wilbur, was employed to erect the furnace 
in style'-.Similar to one at Lime Rock, Connecticut. The company used locally- 
mined iron ore from Iron Mountain near Oswego and, for fuel, charcoal manu­ 
factured : on therspofc.

In May 1865 ground was broken for the furnace, but the structure was not 
in operation before August 1867. The furnace was constructed of hewn basalt 
and was 32 feet high, 34 feet square at the base, 26 feet square at the top. 
The blowing engines were driven by water power. The construction cost was 
$126,000. The first production was begun on August 24, 1867, on which day 
six tons of metal were poured. The average capacity of this blast furnace 
was eight tons per day. Two and a half tons of limonite ore dug near the 
furnace produced one ton of pig iron.

Operating through subsequent years under various names and managements, 
the furnace was abandoned in 1885. Today the only vestige of the Oregon 
Iron Company operation is the furnace, which is preserved by the City of 
Lake Oswego as an historical attraction in George Rogers Park.
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The firsi__pJLg-iron produced west of the Rocky Mountains was smelted in th|a 
Oregon Iron Company furnace on August 24, 1867, The foundry provided materi 
for the cast iron fronts of the important buildings of the day in Portland 
and other West Coast cities. Ore^was mined from Iron Mountain west of Osweg

ad,
The operation was fueled by charcoal and water power provided by Oswego Cree

The Oregon Iron Company of Oswego had an up and down career. Troubles 
beset the company, forcing frequent closures of the operation. The cost of 
manufacturing the pig iron was so high that the industry had difficulty 
competing with Eastern-made pig iron, and ultimately the local operation was 
discontinued.

In the early days of Oregon's statehood freight rates were high. There 
was a great demand for steel products, and Oregonians felt that the progress 
of the state was being impeded by nearly prohibitive rates on rails, sawmill 
machinery and other heavy hardware. As a consequence, Oregon was the first 
Western state to urge the mining of iron ore and its smelting and manufactur 
into pig iron.

In 1862 a blacksmith at Oswego smelted iron ore found in the vicinity of 
Oswego and made a pick and also made horseshoe nails from the iron he had 
smelted. This led to the formation of the Oswego Iron Company, with a capit 
of $500,000. Its promoters and chief stockholders were William S. Ladd, H.C 
Leonard and H.D. Green. On May 13, 1865, at a meeting of the stockholders 
W.S. Ladd was elected president; H.C. Leonard, Vice-president; and Henry 
Failing, Addison M. Starr, John Green and Henry D. Green, Directors. G.D. 
tfilbur of Connecticut was employed to build a furnace at Oswego similar to 
[the one at Lime Rock, Connecticut. In May 1865 ground was broken for cons­ 
truction. In August. 1867 the first casting of iron west of the Rockies was 
made. The following month saw fifty tons of Oswego iron shipped to San Fran-l 
Cisco on the ship Montana. By October 1867 the company had manufactured 224 
long tons at a cost of $29 per ton. By 1869, 2400 tons of pig iron had been 
purned out at Oswego.

After but a few months trouble began to cripple the operation. A dispute 
over water rights on the Tualatin River was the crowning blow. Operations 
ceased on April 8, 1869. A group of Eastern capitalists bought the company 
and reopened the foundry in the spring of 1874. Iron for the foundries of 
ortland and San Francisco was produced satisfactorily, but a competitive 
rice was not maintained, and once again the foundry closed its doors. To 
latisfy a judgment of creditors, the properties of the Oregon Iron Company 
|ere sold at sheriff's sale in 1877. L.B. Seeley and E.W. Crichton were the 
urchasers. The pair re-formed the Oregon Iron Company, and improvements were
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Oregon Iron Company Furnace

5. Location (Continued)

The Oregon Iron Company Furnace is located in NW \ SW%, Sec. 11, T. 
IE., of the Willamette Meridian, Clackamas County, Oregon.

2 S.

the

project

8. Significance (Continued)

made, including the building of a narrow-gauge railroad to haul the ore, and 
opening of a new mine.

This second company operated until 1882, when the Oregon Iron and Steel 
Company was incorporated to take over the business. The power behind the 
was Simeon G. Reed, a capitalist who 33 name is perpetuated in Oregon through 
Reed College., t'he institution he helped to finance.

In the fall of 1885 operations were again suspended.
In 1888 the Oregon Iron and Steel Company resumed operation but abandoned 

the old furnace and constructed an entirely new plant. The new company was 
to encounter many of the same difficulties which led to the failure of the 
earlier corporations, and it ceased operation in 1894. 
All that remains of the original plant is the furnace.
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